
 

 

 

 

THE OCTOBER 7, 2020 VILLAGE BOARD MEETING WILL BE HELD VIRTUALLY. YOU 
CAN WATCH THE MEETING LIVE VIA THE VILLAGE WEBSITE BY CLICKING "WATCH 
LIVE" UNDER THE TROLLWAY TV GRAPHIC ON THE RIGHT SIDE OF THE HOME 
PAGE AT WWW.MOUNTHOREBWI.INFO. THE MEETING IS ALSO BROADCAST LIVE 
ON MHTC CHANNEL 181 AND CHARTER CHANNEL 981. YOU CAN ALSO JOIN THE 

MEETING USING THE FOLLOWING: 
 
Village Board Meeting  

Wed, Oct 7, 2020 7:00 PM - 9:00 PM (CDT)  

 

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/501847149  

 

You can also dial in using your phone.  

United States: +1 (408) 650-3123   Access Code: 501-847-149  

 

REVISED 
VILLAGE BOARD 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 7, 2020 
 
The Village Board of the Village of Mount Horeb will meet virtually on the above date at 
7:00pm.  Agenda as follows: 
 
1) Call to order 

Roll call 
 

2) Consent Agenda: 
a) August 26 and September 2, 2020 Village Board minutes  
b) Operator's License: Stacy Dickson 
c) Extraterritorial jurisdiction Certified Survey Map for James Leuzinger/Z&L 

Properties LLC, Section 13 Town of Blue Mounds 
d) Amendment to Extraterritorial Zoning Ordinance pertaining to Parcel 0606-

021-8020-1: Extraterritorial Zoning Jurisdiction Rezone and Conditional Use 
Permit for Scott/Janelle Holmstrom for Lot 1 CSM 2986 from A-2(4) 
Agricultural District (Legacy) to AG-Agricultural Zoning in Town of Blue 
Mounds including conditions per Town of Blue Mounds Resolution 2020-1 

e) Suggested Trick or Treat hours of 5-7pm on Halloween, Saturday, October 31 
f) Appointment of Brenda Fritz to Police Commission to replace Rollie Schraepfer 

with term expiring May 1, 2025 
g) Pay Request No. 5 Final 2019 Street Improvements to Rule Construction for 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/501847149
tel:+14086503123,,501847149


 

 

$17,000.00 
h) Pay Request No. 1 2020 Street Project to S & L Underground Inc for 

$125,967.15 
i) Appointment of Kingsley Gobourne to Community Development Authority to 

replace Brenda Monroe with term expiring May 1, 2024 
 
3) Consider extraterritorial zoning with the Town of Blue Mounds 
 
4) Village President's report 

 
5) Village Administrator's report  

 
6) Village Clerk/Deputy Treasurer's report 
 
7) Adjourn 
 
UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF DISABLED INDIVIDUALS THROUGH 
APPROPRIATE AIDS AND SERVICES.  FOR INFORMATION OR TO REQUEST THIS SERVICE, CONTACT ALYSSA GROSS, CLERK, AT 

138 E MAIN STREET, MOUNT HOREB, WI (608) 437-9404. 

 



 

1 

 

JOINT VILLAGE BOARD AND  
PLAN COMMISSION/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 26, 2020 
 

The Village Board and Plan Commission/Historic Preservation Commission of the Village of 

Mount Horeb met on the above date in a virtual meeting.  Village President Randy Littel called 

the meeting to order at 6:00pm.  Village Board trustees present were Aaron Boehnen at 6:04pm, 

Ryan Czyzewski, Jason Fendrick, Beth Hill, and Cathy Scott.  Village trustee Jessica Jackson was 

absent.  Plan Commission members present were Dave Hoffman, Destinee Udelhoven, Aaron 

Boehnen, Peggy Zalucha, and Brent Yauchler at 6:13pm.  Commissioner Norb Scribner was 

absent.  Also present were Village Administrator Nic Owen, Assistant Village Administrator Kathy 

Hagen, Village Planner Mike Slavney, Village Attorney Bryan Kleinmaier, and Deputy Clerk 

Chrissy Kahl. 

PC=Plan Commission VB=Village Board   

Joint discussion regarding extraterritorial zoning in Town of Blue Mounds:  Owen gave an 

overview of this item.  Town of Blue Mounds Supervisor John Brixy was present and spoke.  

Town of Blue Mounds Attorney Mark Hazelbaker was also present and spoke. 

PC:  Consider recommendation for Resolution 2020-23 regarding extraterritorial zoning over 

a portion of the Town of Blue Mounds:  Littel moved, Zalucha seconded to table this item for 

further discussion.  Roll call vote: Littel-yes, Boehnen-yes, Hoffman-yes, Udelhoven-yes, 

Yauchler-yes, Zalucha-yes.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

PC:  Consider recommendation for Ordinance 2020-14, “AN ORDINANCE CREATING SECTION 

17.201 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE-AN INTERIM EXTRATERRITORIAL ZONING ORDINANCE 

WITHIN THE TOWN OF BLUE MOUNDS:  Littel moved, Yauchler seconded to table this item for 

further discussion.  Roll call vote:  Littel-yes, Boehnen-yes, Hoffman-yes, Udelhoven-yes, 

Yauchler-yes, Zalucha-yes.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

Ryan Czyzewski left the meeting at 6:38pm due to technical issues. 

VB:  Consider Resolution 2020-23 regarding extraterritorial zoning over a portion of the Town 

of Blue Mounds:  Littel moved to table this item.  There was no second, so the motion died.  The 

item was re-opened for discussion.  Scott moved, seconded by Hill to approve Resolution 2020-

23.  Roll call vote:  Littel-no, Boehnen-yes, Fendrick-yes, Hill-yes, Scott-yes.  Motion carried.   

VB:  Consider Ordinance 2020-14, “AN ORDINANCE CREATING SECTION 17.201 OF THE 

MUNICIPAL CODE-AN INTERIM EXTRATERRTIORIAL ZONING ORDINANCE WITHIN THE TOWN 



 

2 

 

OF BLUE MOUNDS”:  Fendrick moved, Scott seconded to approve Ordinance 2020-14.  Roll call 

vote:  Littel-no, Boehnen-yes, Fendrick-yes, Hill-yes, Scott-yes.  Motion carried. 

Adjourn:  Scott moved, Hill seconded to adjourn at 6:48pm.  Motion carried by unanimous voice 

vote.   

Minutes by Chrissy Kahl, Deputy Clerk  



 

9/02/20 Village Board Meeting Page 1 

VILLAGE OF MOUNT HOREB 
VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 2, 2020 
 

The Village Board met in regular session via virtual meeting due to the COVID-19 
pandemic.  
 
Call to Order/Roll Call: Village President Randy Littel called the meeting to order at 
7:00pm.  Present were Trustees Fendrick, Jackson, Czyzewski, Boehnen, Hill, and Scott.  
Also present were Administrator Nic Owen, Assistant Administrator Kathy Hagen, and 
Clerk/Deputy Treasurer Alyssa Gross.  
 
Consent Agenda: Czyzewski moved, Fendrick seconded to table the Extraterritorial 
jurisdiction Certified Survey Map for James Leuzinger/Z&L Properties LLC, Section 13 
Town of Blue Mounds with no Village signage until Town of Blue Mounds resolution 
number and date of approval for expanded CSM is shown on face of survey.  Motion 
carried by unanimous voice vote.  Czyzewski moved, Hill seconded to approve the 
remaining consent agenda items: August 5, 2020 Village Board minutes; Operator’s 
License: Dale Graff, Keriana Mataya, Tyler Wantuch, and Tonyna Gornie; Ordinance 2020-
15, “AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 7.07(3) PARKING 
LIMITATIONS”; Resolution 2020-24, “CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR DETACHED 
GARAGE EXCEEDING 15 FEET IN HEIGHT 806 E MAIN STREET”; Resolution 2020-26 
“RESOLUTION REQUESTING EXEMPTION FROM COUNTY LIBRARY TAX”; Extraterritorial 
jurisdiction Certified Survey Map for Diane Fink, Section 11 Town of Blue Mounds; 
Employee Handbook Policy 100-19, “Debt Management”; Resolution 2020-25, “ANNUAL 
BANK AUTHORIZATION RESOLUTION”.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Consider 2021 budget for Mount Horeb Area Joint Fire Department: Chief Jenny 
Minter presented their budget and answered questions from the board.  Fendrick moved, 
Czyzewski seconded to direct the fire board representative to approve the budget as 
presented.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Consider Developer Agreement for North Cape Commons Subdivision Phase 5: 
Owen explained this item.  Developer John DeWitt was present to answer questions.  
Scott moved, Hill seconded to approve the developer agreement. Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: To receive input on proposed fee revision to Municipal Code 
Chapter 12.01(3) Direct Sellers Fee; and changes to Municipal Code 12.05 
Regulating Direct Sellers: Owen explained this item.  The public hearing opened at 
7:27pm.  There was no one wishing to speak.  The public hearing closed at 7:28pm. 
 
 



 

9/02/20 Village Board Meeting Page 2 

Consider Ordinance 2020-13, “AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 12.01(3) 
DIRECT SELLERS FEE AND REPEAL AND RECREATE SECTION 12.05 OF THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE REGULATING DIRECT SELLERS”: Scott and Fendrick discussed 
modifying the wording in two sections.  Fendrick moved, Czyzewski seconded to approve 
the ordinance with the discussed modifications in Sections 4 and 9.  Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Village President’s report: Littel stated that the school district has done a great job 
with their virtual plan.  He also stated the village staff has done a great job during the 
pandemic. 
 
Village Administrator’s report: Owen did not have anything to report. 
 
Village Clerk/Deputy Treasurer’s report: Gross reported that over 1700 absentee 
ballots had been mailed so far for the November 3 General election and in-person 
absentee voting starts on Tuesday, October 20th.  She also spoke about the mailing the 
Wisconsin Elections Commission sent out to voters who had not requested an absentee 
ballot by June 30th. 
 
Adjournment: There being no further business before the Board, Scott moved, Hill 
seconded to adjourn the meeting at 7:39pm.  Motion carried by voice vote. 
 
Minutes by Alyssa Gross, Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 



















a

a

a

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!
!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!
!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!
!!

!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!!
!!! !!!

To
wn

 of
 Sp

rin
gd

ale
To

wn
 of

 B
lue

 M
ou

nd
s

Town of SpringdaleTown of Blue Mounds
Town of Cross PlainsTown of Vermont

Ge
rm

an
 Va

lle
y B

ran
ch

Bohn
 Cree

k

Elvers Creek

Moen Creek

Bohn Creek

Lit
tle

No

rway Creek

Elvers Creek

Sugar
Riv e

r

Sugar River

Schlapbach Creek

Sch
lap

bac
h Cree

k

Frye rs Feeder

Fr
yer

s F
ee

de
r

Deer Creek

Deer Creek

W
estBranchSugar R iver

Stewart
Lake

³±ID

£¤151£¤18

¬«78

³±P

³±PD

³±ID

³±J

³±JG

³±JG

³±P

³±S

¬«78

¬«92

³±JG

³±E

¬«78

£¤151
£¤18

Fou
rth

 S
t

To
wn

 H
all

 Rd

Town Hall Rd

No
rth

 Rd

Wi
tte

 Rd

Barton Rd

Blu
e M

oun
ds 

St

Be
rgu

m 
Rd

Garfield St

Eig
hth

 S
t

Erb
e R

d

Main St

Se
con

d S
t

Sp
rin

gda
le 

Ce
nte

r R
d

Fir
st 

St

An
dre

w L
n

Lunde Ln

Lincoln St

Lak
e S

t

Fargo Rd

Fertile Ridge Rd

Per imeterRd

Offerdahl Rd

Front St
Hic

kor
y D

r

Brian St

Blue Mounds Rd

Slett
o Rd

Do
cke

n R
d

Durtschi Dr

Forest St

South Rd Prairie Ridge Rd

Nesheim
 Tr

Nordic Tr

Par
k V

iew
 D

r

Wilson St

³±J

Br
ook

w o
od

Dr

Malone Rd

Sand Rock Rd

Lew
is 

Rd

To
wn

 H
all

 Rd

Blue Mounds Rd

Messerschmidt Dr

Bus. 18/151 E

Potential
School

Site

±Adopted: November 2, 2005
Revised:  July 22, 2009
Data Source: Dane County LIO, Dane County RPC

Mount Horeb
Comprehensive Plan

±Data Source: Dane County LIO, V&A,
                      Capitol Area RPC

0 2,000 4,000 6,0001,000
Feet

Future Land Use
ETJ View 4a

!
!
!

!!! !

!
!

!!!!!! Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Boundary

Land Use Categories

Planned Neighborhood

Neighborhood Business

Each "Planned Neighborhood" may
include a mix of:
     1. Single-Family (Sewered) - predominate
         land use
     2. Two-Family Residential
     3. Multi-Family Residential
     4. Government and Institutional
     5. Neighborhood Business
     6. Public Park and Open Space

Agriculture and Vacant
Single-Family Residential (Unsewered)
Single-Family Residential (Sewered)
Two-Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Elderly Housing Residential

Planned Business

Planned Office
Recreation Business

Planned Mixed Use

General Industrial

Public Park and Open Space

Environmental Corridor

Extraction

Right of Way

Town Boundaries

Potential Future Roads
Surface Water

Main Street Business

Shaping places, shaping change

VANDEWALLE &ASSOCIATES INC.

Current Urban Service Area Boundary

Village of Mount Horeb Boundary

Planned Industrial

1
26

4 35

Conservancy

Government and Institutional

1
26

4
35

Business Park may include:
     1. Planned Industrial
     2. Planned Business
     3. Recreation Business
     4. Government and Institutional
     5. Public Park and Open Space
     6. Planned Office

Planned Business Park

Central Business

Potential Future Urban Service Area Boundary

Adopted: January 16, 2020

khagen
Line

khagen
Text Box
Z&L Properties CSM



a

a

a

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!
!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!
!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!
!!

!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!!
!!! !!!

To
wn

 of
 Sp

rin
gd

ale
To

wn
 of

 B
lue

 M
ou

nd
s

Town of SpringdaleTown of Blue Mounds
Town of Cross PlainsTown of Vermont

Ge
rm

an
 Va

lle
y B

ran
ch

Bohn
 Cree

k

Elvers Cre ek

Moen Creek

Bohn Creek

Lit
tle

No

rway Creek

Elvers Creek

Sugar
Rive

r

Sugar River

Schlapbach Creek

Sch
lap

bac
h Cree

k

Fryers Feeder

Fr
yer

s F
eed

er

Deer Creek

Deer Creek

WestBranchSugar River

Stewart
Lake

³±ID

£¤151£¤18

¬«78

³±P

³±PD

³±ID

³±J

³±JG

³±JG

³±P

³±S

¬«78

¬«92

³±JG

³±E

¬«78

£¤151
£¤18

Fou
rth

 S
t

To
wn

 H
all 

Rd

Town Hall Rd

No
rth

 Rd

Wi
tte

 Rd

Barton Rd

Blu
e M

oun
ds 

St

Be
rgu

m 
Rd

Garfield St

Eig
hth

 S
t

Erb
e R

d

Main St

Se
con

d S
t

Sp
rin

gda
le 

Ce
nte

r R
d

Fir
st 

St

An
dre

w 
Ln

Lunde Ln

Lincoln St

Lak
e S

t

Fargo Rd

Fertile Ridge Rd

Per imeterRd

Offerdahl Rd

Front St
Hic

kor
y D

r

Brian St

Blue Mounds Rd

Slett
o Rd

Do
cke

n R
d

Durtschi Dr

Forest St

South Rd Prairie Ridge Rd

Nesheim
 Tr

Nordic Tr

Par
k V

iew
 D

r

Wilson St

³±J

Bro
okw

ood
Dr

Malone Rd

Sand Rock Rd

Lew
is 

Rd

To
wn

 H
all 

Rd

Blue Mounds Rd

Messerschmidt Dr

Bus. 18/151 E

Potential
School

Site

±Adopted: November 2, 2005
Revised:  July 22, 2009
Data Source: Dane County LIO, Dane County RPC

Mount Horeb
Comprehensive Plan

±Data Source: Dane County LIO, V&A,
                      Capitol Area RPC

0 2,000 4,000 6,0001,000
Feet

Future Land Use
ETJ View 4a

!
!
!

!!! !

!
!

!!!!!! Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Boundary

Land Use Categories

Planned Neighborhood

Neighborhood Business

Each "Planned Neighborhood" may
include a mix of:
     1. Single-Family (Sewered) - predominate
         land use
     2. Two-Family Residential
     3. Multi-Family Residential
     4. Government and Institutional
     5. Neighborhood Business
     6. Public Park and Open Space

Agriculture and Vacant
Single-Family Residential (Unsewered)
Single-Family Residential (Sewered)
Two-Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Elderly Housing Residential

Planned Business

Planned Office
Recreation Business

Planned Mixed Use

General Industrial

Public Park and Open Space

Environmental Corridor

Extraction

Right of Way

Town Boundaries

Potential Future Roads
Surface Water

Main Street Business

Shaping places, shaping change

VANDEWALLE &ASSOCIATES INC.

Current Urban Service Area Boundary

Village of Mount Horeb Boundary

Planned Industrial

1
26

4 35

Conservancy

Government and Institutional

1
26

4
35

Business Park may include:
     1. Planned Industrial
     2. Planned Business
     3. Recreation Business
     4. Government and Institutional
     5. Public Park and Open Space
     6. Planned Office

Planned Business Park

Central Business

Potential Future Urban Service Area Boundary

Adopted: July 1, 2020

khagen
Line

khagen
Text Box
HOLMSTROM REZONE AND CONDITIONAL USE











44 East Mifflin Street, Suite 500, Madison, WI 53703 T 608.251.1177 F 608.251.6147 

September 30, 2020 

Nic Owen 
Village Administrator 
VILLAGE OF MOUNT HOREB 
138 East Main Street 
Mount Horeb, WI 53572 

Re Pay Request No. 5 FINAL – Contract 19-100, 2019 Street Improvements 

Dear Nic, 

Enclosed is Payment Request No. 5 (final) from Rule Construction, Ltd., for work performed on the above 
referenced project. This payment request is recommended for payment in the amount of $17,000.00. A 
summary of the payment is listed below, and the detailed request has been attached.  
 
TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED TO DATE $498,136.50 

LESS GUARANTEE - 

NET AMOUNT DUE $498,136.50 

AMOUNT OF PREVIOUS PAYMENTS $481,136.50 

AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION $17,000.00 

 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call. Thank you. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Heather Brose, PE 
Civil Engineer 
 
 
 
CC:  Rule Construction, Ltd. via Email  



September 30, 2020







44 East Mifflin Street, Suite 500, Madison, WI 53703 T 608.251.1177 F 608.251.6147 

September 30, 2020 

Nic Owen 
Village Administrator 
VILLAGE OF MOUNT HOREB 
138 East Main Street 
Mount Horeb, WI 53572 

Re Pay Request No. 1 – Contract 20-100, 2020 Street Improvements 

Dear Nic, 

Enclosed is Payment Request No. 1 from S&L Underground, Inc., for work performed to date on the 
above referenced project. This payment request is recommended for payment in the amount of 
$125,967.15. A summary of the payment is listed below, and the detailed request has been attached.  

TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED TO DATE $132,597.00 

LESS RETAINAGE $6,629.85 

NET AMOUNT DUE $125,967.15 

AMOUNT OF PREVIOUS PAYMENTS - 

AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION $125,967.15 

If you have questions, please do not hesitate to call. Thank you.  

Sincerely, 

Heather Brose, PE 
Civil Engineer 

cc: S&L Underground, Inc. via Email 



September 30, 2020












